
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, August 26, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-1132 Minutes from August 12, 2024

 

08-12-2024 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

24-1133 Approve Lawe Street Concrete Reconstruction Design 

Lawe Street Design Approval Memo.pdf

Lawe St Supplemental Info.pdf

Lawe St MSC Design Approval Notice 8-14-24.pdf

Attachments:

24-1134 Grant application request for new traffic signal at the Richmond Street 

(STH 47) / Ridgeview Drive intersection

MSC STH 47  Ridgeview SISP grant application request.pdfAttachments:

24-1135 Approve an ordinance updating Municipal Code Chapter 15, Article III, 

Rates and Charges

Memo Refuse Fee Ordinance Update 2024.pdf

Refuse Can Change to Ords.pdf

Attachments:

24-1154 Fee Waiver Request - 311 N Superior Street

311 N. Superior St Memo.pdf

311 N Superior Photos.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 8/23/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24832
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f08962b0-cfac-44d2-a224-ad9f936eff12.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24833
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=35857227-2b39-4b08-abd8-4822267209d1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1de963fe-fbcf-48b6-a8bb-81ddf059be35.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=db3ae6a8-8960-4e79-88c2-30b55be01614.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24834
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0e57fffb-94d7-4445-85a8-479b3101714f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24835
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=244ffbad-0bd5-4a03-90aa-47b9513ae747.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=824e411a-c762-49d0-bd42-5dc1642c1193.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24854
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=247fea51-0e89-48ab-8300-cc7a6b4dc8ce.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7fcc1e63-e39d-481c-b132-888e84d3c1ac.pdf


August 26, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1157 Approve sole source contract with Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc. 

(TAPCO) for TIBA ramp access software cloud migration, upgrade of ramp 

access credit card readers, and added Pay-On-Foot equipment, in an 

amount not to exceed $221,209.00. 

MSC Award Memo Sole Source Tapco TIBA Ramp System Upgrades.pdf

TAPCO TIBA sole source approval memo Finance Purchase Mgr 08-22-2024.pdf

Attachments:

7. Information Items

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 8/23/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24857
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=80af6152-c68d-4c44-9361-4d035a3a1f05.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b212ccaf-0380-460b-8ff6-6d5aa4c0ea15.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, August 12, 2024

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and FirkusPresent: 4 - 

DoranExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

24-1035 Minutes from July 22, 2024

 

07-22-2024 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

24-1036 Approve Boldt Permanent Street Occupancy Permit and Sign Permit for 

5 Awnings in College Avenue Right-of-Way Associated with the Fox 

Commons Project

Location 1 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 2 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 3 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 4 Awning Applications.pdf

Main Entrance Awning Applications.pdf

Attachments:

Meltzer moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24736
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=99db5cd4-ab70-4bc6-bbd0-ff2f5d681c89.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24737
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee63cd6b-d225-4741-8ed8-0b94ed1980ec.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b640a271-04b4-40d3-82a9-6fcdaae41034.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6bc8836-07ad-49ac-a6bb-cb8afaef223a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a73e817-9f89-4e2a-9730-1d954086adc3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52158c39-f76d-498a-8279-9e2aac7d044f.pdf


August 12, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1037 Approve Findorff Long Term Temporary Street Occupancy Permit in 

Oneida Street and City Center Street for Fox Commons Construction

J.H Findorff - City Center St - long term permit 9-6-24.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1038 Approve RODAC Long Term Temporary Street Occupancy Permit for 

dumpster within Morrison Street parking lane north of College Ave 

through 11/15/2024  

RODAC - long-term occupancy permit 9-14-24.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1039 Award of Contract for Land Acquisition Services for Lawe Street 

reconstruction to Moss & Associates, in an amount not to exceed 

$217,000

MSC Memo Land Acquisition services Lawe St 08-12-2024.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1040 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on Catherine Street at 

North Street

Catherine-North (Yield to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24738
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9316fb85-ee3e-492d-b2f9-d7776690b073.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24739
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fcc77d34-bee3-4da1-95d9-65ac431ff7f6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24740
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d6b4b9f-7c74-4409-babf-37a6369c97d2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24741
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ff2a406-9297-4188-be40-2de34eb7985d.pdf


August 12, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1041 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on the north leg of Mary 

Street at North Street (for southbound traffic)

Mary-North (north leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1042 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on the south leg of Mary 

Street at North Street (for northbound traffic)

Mary-North (south leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1044 Approve ordinance changes for Parking changes on Mason St by 

Jefferson ES (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation)

Mason St 1000S - Jefferson ES Parking Changes.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1045 Approve ordinance changes to Install a stop sign on Tonka Street at 

North Street

North-Tonka (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1046 Approve street vacation for a 50’ x 70’ area of Sampson Street south of 

E. Winnebago Street 

Sampson Vacation Combined.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24742
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e1e1f86f-1f1c-4222-9eac-d118a51024d0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24743
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51301ba9-157e-427e-bb84-6e6f2655107a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24744
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d244bab3-e65f-4647-8453-cf747eca5844.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24745
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a15e7fd5-826d-4164-994f-e6f051fd8478.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24746
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e835ba00-5b53-4044-b2bc-0d73f06cf9d2.pdf


August 12, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1050 Amendment Request - Service Contract for Traffic Signal Control and 

Management Software

SISP Contract Award_Amendment Memo.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

24-1051 Variance Request for Driveway Extension - 3039 N. Ballard Rd

3039 N Ballard Rd Drive Extension Variance Request Memo.pdfAttachments:

Staff's recommendation to deny the variance was recommended for approval.

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, to recommend approval of Inspections 

Division recommendation, which is to deny the

Variance request. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Information Items7.

24-1047 Coop Rd/Midway Rd (CTH AP) intersection control (proposed all-way 

stop) per Calumet County

Coop-Midway All-Way Stop Info Memo.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment8.

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the meeting be adjourned. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24750
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36293ebb-5289-4aa5-96af-2f16e9c5561e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24751
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7dfb264e-a9ee-47ea-bf27-3366a7ecfa16.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24747
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b88293e7-df51-40d5-b24e-e6b44176b70e.pdf


 

MEMORANDUM  
Date:   08/26/2024 
To:    Municipal Services Committee 
From:   Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works 
Subject: Approve Lawe Street Concrete Reconstruction Design 
 
 
The Department of Public Works (DPW) requests approval of the design parameters for Lawe Street 
between College Avenue and Wisconsin Avenue as follows: 

Lawe St is to be reconstructed with concrete pavement and curb and gutter between College Avenue and 
Spring Street; remove and replace the existing pavement markings between Spring Street and Wisconsin 
Avenue.  Design parameters include: 

College Ave to Washington St:   
• New concrete pavement constructed to a width of 40’ from face of curb to face of 

curb, which is 1’-4’ wider than the existing street within this portion of the project.   
• 1 travel lane in each direction  
• Dedicated right turn lane at College Avenue for southbound traffic 
• Dedicated bike lanes along both sides of the street 
• On-street parking to be prohibited along both sides of the street which is unchanged 

from existing conditions 

Washington St to Franklin St:   
• New concrete pavement to be constructed to a width of 32’ from face of curb to face 

of curb, which is 4’ narrower than the existing street within this portion of the project.   
• 1 travel lane in each direction  
• Dedicated bike lanes along both sides of the street 
• On-street parking to be prohibited along both sides of the street which is unchanged 

from existing conditions 

Franklin St to Spring St:   
• New concrete pavement to be constructed to a width of 32’ from face of curb to face 

of curb, which is the same width as the existing street within this portion of the 
project.   

• 1 travel lane in each direction  
• Dedicated bike lanes along both sides of the street 
• On-street parking to be prohibited along both sides of the street which is unchanged 

from existing conditions 



 
 
 
Lawe Street Design Approval 
08-26-2024 
-Page 2- 

 
• Traffic Calming elements to be implemented: 

o Lawe & North – raised median 
o Lawe & Pacific – raised median 

Spring St to Wisconsin Ave:   
• Remove existing pavement marking and restripe as follows:   

o 1 travel lane in each direction  
o Dedicated bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o Dedicated left turn lanes at Meade Street and Wisconsin Avenue 
o Existing on-street parking to remain unchanged within this portion of the 

project 

 
 



 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE – August 26, 2024 
Supplemental Project Information: 2026 Lawe Street Reconstruction 

 
INTRODUCTION: 
 

Proposed 2026 paving: 
 

Lawe St     (College Ave to Wisconsin Ave) 
 

Lawe St is proposed to undergo a total reconstruction.  The reconstruction of Lawe Street, from 
College Ave to Spring St, will include the removal and replacement of all existing 
asphalt/concrete pavement, curb and gutter, stone base, driveway aprons, and sidewalk.  This 
project will also include removal and restriping of the existing pavement marking from Spring 
Street to Wisconsin Avenue. 

 
LAWE STREET – College Ave to Wisconsin Ave (4300 LF) (2026 Concrete Pavt Reconstruct) 
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
• Aldermanic District 2, 4, 11 
• Traffic Counts:   

o College – Franklin 8929 vpd (2019) 
o Franklin – Pacific 7650 vpd (2019) 
o Pacific – Atlantic 5996 vpd (2017) 
o Atlantic – Spring 6400 vpd (2016) 

• Parking restricted along both sides of the street within project limits 
• Bus Route 
• Existing right of way width: 60’ Typical 
• Existing pavement width:   

o College – Washington:  39’ & 36’ (face-of-curb to face-of-curb) 
o Washington – Franklin:  36’ (face-of-curb to face-of-curb) 
o Franklin – Spring:  32’ (face-of-curb to face-of-curb) 

• Existing Pavement 
o Concrete placed in 1973 
o Asphalt placed in 1945 

• Existing Water Main 
o 6”, 8” CIP constructed year unknown 

• Existing Sanitary Sewer 
o College – Hancock:  8” ABS TRUSS constructed 1972 
o Hancock – Spring:  18” x 26” CON constructed 1889 

• Existing Storm Sewer 
o 18” PVC constructed 2002 
o 12”, 15”, 21”, 27” CON constructed 1965 
o 12” CON constructed 1963 
o 15” CON constructed 1960 

 
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

• Underground utilities to be improved in 2025 
• College Ave – Washington St 

o New concrete pavement – 40’ (face-to-face) (1’-4’ wider than existing, 39’ & 
36’) 

o 1 travel lane in each direction 
o Dedicated left turn lane at College Ave 
o Remove and replace concrete sidewalk and driveway aprons 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o On-street parking would be restricted along both sides of the street 
o 6 trees removed due to proximity/grading work needed (3 east/3 west) 



 
 
 
 
 

• Washington St – Franklin St 
o New concrete pavement – 32’ (face-to-face) (4’ narrower than existing, 36’) 
o 1 travel lane in each direction 
o Remove and replace concrete sidewalk and driveway aprons 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o On-street parking would be restricted along both sides of the street 
o 3 trees removed due to poor condition (2 east/1 west) and 1 tree removed due 

to proximity/grading work needed (east) 
• Franklin St – Spring St 

o New concrete pavement – 32’ (face-to-face) (same width as existing) 
o 1 travel lane in each direction 
o Raised medians for enhanced pedestrian crossing safety and traffic calming 

at North Street and Pacific Street 
o Remove and replace concrete sidewalk and driveway aprons 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o On-street parking would be restricted along both sides of the street 
o 21 trees removed due to poor condition (4 east/17 west), 10 trees removed 

due to proximity/grading work needed (7 east/3 west), and 1 ash tree to be 
removed (west side) 

• Spring St – Wisconsin Ave 
o Remove existing pavement marking and restripe as follows: 

 1 travel lane in each direction 
 Bike lanes along both sides of street 
 Dedicated left turn lanes at Meade St and Wisconsin Ave 
 Existing on-street parking would remain unchanged 

 
COST ESTIMATE 

• Estimated Construction Cost = $4.4 Million 
 
 



Department of Public Works 
Engineering Division 

100 N. Appleton St. Fl. 5 
Appleton, WI 54911-4702  

p: 920-832-6474 
https://www.appleton.org/government/public-works 

 

 
 
August 14, 2024 
 
 
Dear Property Owner/Resident: 
 
The City of Appleton is proposing to reconstruct the pavement on Lawe Street, from College Avenue to 
Spring Street, in 2026.  
 
On Monday August 26th, the Municipal Services Committee of the Common Council will conduct a 
formal vote on the proposed design of Lawe Street, as was presented at the public information meeting 
that took place on March 18, 2024.  At the August 26th Municipal Services Committee meeting, the 
Committee will be presented the proposed Lawe Street design by the City’s engineering consultant, 
Ayres Associates.  The Committee will then vote on the proposed Lawe Street design.  The August 26th 
meeting will be held at 4:30 p.m. in Committee Room “A”, Sixth Floor at the City Center Building. 
 
The proposed street design for Lawe Street would then go to the full Common Council on September 
4th, 2024. 
 
A copy of the proposed plans for Lawe Street can be previewed on the city website at the following link: 
http://www.appleton.org/government/public-works/project-information 
 
The current design option calls for replacing the existing pavement as follows: 
 
 College Ave – Washington St 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 40’ wide from face of curb to face of curb. The 
proposed 40’ wide street is 1-4’ wider than the existing street (39’ & 36’).   

o 1 thru lane in each direction 
o Dedicated left turn lane at College Ave 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o On-street parking would be restricted. 

 
 Washington St – Franklin St 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 32’ wide from face of curb to face of curb. The 
proposed 32’ wide street is 4’ narrower than the existing street (36’).   

o 1 thru lane in each direction 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o On-street parking would be restricted. 

 
 Franklin St – Spring St 

- New concrete pavement would be constructed at 32’ wide from face of curb to face of curb. The 
proposed 32’ wide street is the same width as the existing street.  

o 1 thru lane in each direction 
o Bike lanes along both sides of the street 
o Raised medians for pedestrian crossings would be constructed at North St & Pacific St. 
o On-street parking would be restricted. 

http://www.appleton.org/government/public-works/project-information


 
- All existing sidewalk and driveway aprons within the project limits would be removed and replaced 

with new concrete sidewalk and driveway aprons. 
 

- Sanitary sewer and water main will be reconstructed, if necessary, in 2025. 
 
The Municipal Services Committee meeting is open to the public.  If you have any questions or 
comments, feel free to contact me at 920-832-6484 or email at Jason.brown@appleton.org.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jason Brown, P.E. 
Project Engineer   

   
 

c:  Alderpersons 
 

mailto:Jason.brown@appleton.org


Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 08/20/2024 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Michael Hardy, P.E., Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Grant application request for new traffic signal at the Richmond Street (STH 
47) / Ridgeview Drive intersection 

 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) is requesting authorization to apply for grant funds 
through the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Safety and ITS Standalone 
Program (SISP). Our grant application is to install a new permanent traffic signal (and make 
related improvements) at the intersection of State Trunk Highway (STH) 47 (Richmond Street) 
and Ridgeview Drive. The total estimated project cost is $640,000, of which the local cost share 
would be 10% ($64,000). Any real estate acquisition would City’s responsibility, separate from 
the SISP program ($25,000). The deadline for this grant application submission is September 
20th. 
 
DPW is pursuing a 50/50 local cost share agreement with the Town of Grand Chute to split the 
local cost share ($64,000 plus ~$25,000 for real estate). The City would take the lead on this 
project, as most of this intersection falls within city limits. DPW has included $75,000 in our 
2025 proposed budget to front the consultant-supported design. Construction and real estate 
costs would be included in DPW’s 2026 proposed budget. 
Based on ongoing complaints, the Traffic Section reviewed the operations of the Richmond 
Street (STH 47) / Ridgeview Drive intersection. The complaints include the prevalence of 
crashes, long waits on Ridgeview Drive, difficult sight lines for northbound/southbound left turns, 
and challenges crossing Richmond Street for bicyclists and pedestrians. 

Our review determined the traffic volumes are approaching the warrant thresholds, and the 
crash warrant was met in 2021. The recent development in the Town to the east is a 
contributing factor. Once the remaining green space in that area is developed, we anticipate the 
volume threshold will be met. 

The scope of the proposed project will include a new permanent traffic signal, geometric 
improvements to sidewalks to achieve compliance with standards, and aligned left turn lanes for 
optimal visibility and safety. 

Perhaps more pressing, WisDOT will be implementing a temporary traffic signal (with overhead 
span wire) at this intersection in April 2025 to mitigate traffic rerouting for the I-41 & Ballard 
Road interchange closure. We feel the temporary traffic signal will establish a precedent and  



Page 2 of 2 

SISP Grant App 
08/20/2024 
-Page 2- 

 

expectation by the public that traffic signal control should remain. We also feel this temporary 
signal will induce additional traffic on Ridgeview Drive, resulting in additional signal warrants 
being met. WisDOT has agreed to keep their temporary signal in operation through the summer 
of 2026 to allow for construction of this new, permanent signal. 



 
 
 

 
    Finance Department  
         100 N Appleton St 
       Appleton, WI 54911  
            p: 920-832-6442 
             f: 920-832-6317 
        www.appleton.org 

 
               
            
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: August 21, 2024 
To: Chairperson Denise Fenton and Members of the Municipal Service Committee 
From: Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Fund Accounting Manager 
Subject:  Approve an ordinance updating Municipal Code Chapter 15, Article III, Rates 

and Charges 
 

 

The Finance Department requests approval of an ordinance updating Municipal Code Chapter 
15, Article III Rate and Charges.  Strike and bold language of the proposed updates are shown 
on the attached document.  The change updates the billing cycle from weekly to quarterly as 
necessitated by the upcoming implementation of the Utility Billing module within the City’s 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system.   

Currently refuse charges are assessed on a weekly basis.  The ERP system requires all services 
to be billed on a quarterly basis.  Refuse charges will be pro-rated when customers change refuse 
container sizes and move in or move out from the property.   
If approved, the ordinance with this update will become effective upon the later of October 1, 2024 
or the actual implementation date of the Utility Billing module within the City’s Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) system.   
If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this project, please contact 
me at 920-832-6316.   

  



Sec. 15-38. Basis. 

 The solid waste collection charges imposed by this article shall be based on the size and 
number of the containers at the location, according to Department of Public Works records, during 
the week quarter a the charge is incurred. 

Sec. 15-38. Basis. 

 The solid waste collection charges imposed by this article shall be based on the size and 
number of the containers at the location, according to Department of Public Works records, during 
the quarter the charge is incurred. 



 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
Phone (920) 832-6411 

 
TO:   Municipal Services Committee  
 
FROM:  Peter Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

Kurt W. Craanen, Inspections Supervisor 
 

SUBJECT:   Fee Waiver Request – 311 N Superior St. 
     
DATE:   August 26, 2024 
▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬ 
 
The owner of 311 N. Superior St. is requesting a waiver of the $160 administrative fee for 
violation of 12-58 of the Municipal Code.  
 
A notice was sent to the owner on June 13, 2024.  A warrant was obtained and posted on 
the property on July 3, 2024.  The owner cut the grass before the City’s contractor got to the 
site.  
 
The Department of Community Development recommends denial of the appeal to 
waive the $160 administrative fee for high weeds.   
 
   











Parcel No.
CSR No.

Date Issued: Work Order No.

Location:

Instructions:

Date Inspected: Cut Not Cut

Inspected By: Hand Cutting Required

Area Cut (up to 10,000 sq ft) Areas Cut by Hand (sq ft)

Plus: _____ additional 5,000 sq ft areas

TOTAL:  Sq. Ft.

Level Three-Greater than two but less than or equal                
to three person-hours of hand labor $135.00 lump sum)

Vacant parcel larger than 7,200 sq.ft. but 
less than or equal to 10,000 sq ft ($85.00 
per parcel)

Level One-Up to one person-hour of                             
hand labor ($45.00 lump sum)

Level Two-Greater than one but less than or equal             
to two person-hours of hand labor ($90.00 lump sum)

Parcel with structure less than or equal to 
7,200 sq ft ($65.00 per parcel)
Parcel with structure larger than 7,200 sq 
ft but less than or equal to 10,000 sq ft 
($95.00 per parcel)
All parcels greater than 10,000 sq ft 
($55.00 per 5,000 sq ft)

Vacant parcel less than or equal to 7,200 sq ft  
($65.00 per parcel)

FOR CITY USE ONLY

Work Order
for

Cutting of Nuisance Grass or Weeds

24-

J:\CLERICAL - ENG & INSP\Weed Program\Work Order Form - Weed Cutting.xls



 



 

MEMORANDUM  
Date:   08/26/2024 
To:  Finance Committee 
From:  Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works 
Subject: Approve sole source contract with Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc. 

(TAPCO) for TIBA ramp access software cloud migration, upgrade of ramp 
access credit card readers, and added Pay-On-Foot equipment, in an 
amount not to exceed $221,209.00. 

 
 
The Department of Public Works (DPW) is requesting approval of a single-source contract with 
Traffic and Parking Control Co., Inc. (TAPCO) for TIBA ramp access software cloud migration, 
upgrade of ramp access credit card readers, and added Pay-On-Foot equipment, in an amount 
not to exceed $221,209.00. 

To maintain continuity with DPW’s current equipment, software, ramp user databases, and 
staff training, DPW wishes to continue using the TIBA product line, as distributed in our region 
solely by TAPCO. A copy of the Sole Source Authorization form issued by the Finance 
Purchasing Manager is attached for reference.  

The system elements being replaced are marginally functional for now but is nearing 
obsolescence. The desktop PC-based software represents older technology that is difficult to 
troubleshoot and support, and staff have already experienced significant functionality issues 
when staff desktop computers have been replaced in the past. The proposed cloud-based 
software platform complies with IT Department’s strategy to employ cloud-based software 
solutions where such alternatives to on-premise operations exist. 

The ramp card readers being replaced are functional for now but will be obsolete at the end of 
2025, per credit card industry protocols. Additionally, the magnetic stripe technology is 
challenging for users in a line of exiting vehicles because it is slow and can be difficult for some 
users to properly swipe from a vehicle. The proposed “chip and tap” readers are much faster 
and will support a far more positive customer experience, especially when exiting ramps during 
periods of high use. 

The 2024 Parking Utility operations budget includes funding sufficient for this request. 




	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_08-12-2024 MSC Minutes
	0002_1_Lawe Street Design Approval Memo
	0002_2_Lawe St Supplemental Info
	0002_3_Lawe St MSC Design Approval Notice 8-14-24
	0003_1_MSC STH 47 Ridgeview SISP grant application request
	0004_1_Memo Refuse Fee Ordinance Update 2024
	Subject:  Approve an ordinance updating Municipal Code Chapter 15, Article III, Rates and Charges

	0004_2_Refuse Can Change to Ords
	0005_1_311 N. Superior St Memo
	Work Order Form - Weed Cutting (fillable) 2024.pdf
	Work Order-TEMPLATE


	0005_2_311 N Superior Photos
	0006_1_MSC Award Memo Sole Source Tapco TIBA Ramp System Upgrades
	0006_2_TAPCO TIBA sole source approval memo Finance Purchase Mgr 08-22-2024

	Parcel No: 31-2-0641-00
	Date Issued: 07/03/2024
	CSR No: 240872
	Location: 311 N Superior Street
	Instructions 1: Please cut all long grass and weeds on property to be below 8
	Instructions 2: inches, then properly dispose of all clippings. Parking lot in the back has weeds
	Instructions 3: and in the front terrace and along the side of the building.
	Instructions 4: 
	Instructions 5: 
	Instructions 6: 
	Instructions 7: 
	Date Inspected: 07/03/2024
	Cut: Off
	Hand Cutting Required: Off
	Not Cut: On
	Inspected By: Caden Kerrigan
	Vacant parcel less than or equal to 7200 sq ft: Off
	less than or equal to 10000 sq ft 8500: Off
	Parcel with structure less than or equal to: Off
	Parcel with structure larger than 7200 sq: Off
	All parcels greater than 10000 sq ft: On
	undefined: On
	Vacant parcel larger than 7200 sqft but: 
	to three personhours of hand labor 13500 lump sum: Off
	Plus: 3
	TOTAL: 22380
	Text1: 24-011


